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INITIAL DECISION AND DEFAULT ORDER

This is a procecding under Seclion 311 of the Clean Water Act (“"CWA™), 33 US.C. §
1321, as amended, for violations of Qil Pollution Prevention regulations sct forth at 40 C.F.R.
Part 112. The proceeding is governed by the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the
Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of
Permits (“Consohidated Rules™) codified at 40 C.IF.R. Parl 22. Complainant, Chief of the
Response and Prevention Branch, Superfund Divisien, Ulnited Statcs Environmental Protection
Agency Region 6, has filed a Motion for Default and & Memorandum in Support of Motion for
Defauil and Motion for Assessmoent of Penallies sceking a default order hinding Respondent,
New Lift, me., liable for violations of the CWA alleged in the Administrative Complaini
(“Complaini™) filed in this matter and asscssing a ¢ivil penally in the amount of $11,000.00
against Respondeni. Pursuant to the Conselidated Rules and the record in this matter, and for the
reasons set forth below, the Complainant’s Motions are hereby GRANTED.

BACKGROUND

Complainant filed the Complaint sgainsi Respondent in this matter on March 17, 2003,
The Certificate of Scrvice attached to the Complaint includes a ceriification that a copy ol the

Complaint, together with a copy of the Consolidated Rules, was sent by certified mail, relum




receipt requested, on March 17, 2003, to Mr. Mark Cook, identified in the Certificate of Service
as Respondent’s owner. A certilicd mail retum receipt (green card) attach-ecl o Complainant’s
Motion for Default, shows that an article was received by Mark Cook on March 19. A properly
executed relurn receipt constitules proof of service of the Complaint. Nothing in the return
receipt in this case suggests that it was not properly executed, thus proper service of the
Complaint may be presumed under the Conselidated Rules. Respondent was required to file an
answer to the Complaint within 30 days of the service of the Complaint. 40 C.F.R. § 22.15{a).
As of the date of this Order, Respondent has not filed an answer to the Complaint with the
Regional Hearing Clerk. Respondent’s falure to file an answer to the Complaint constitutes an
admission of all facts alleged in the Complaint and a waiver of Respondent’s right to a hcaring
on such factual allegations. 40 CF.R. § 22.17(a).

On May 4, 2005, Complainanl filed its Motion for Default. The Certificate of Service
attached to the Motion for Default shows that a copy of the Motion for Default was served on the
Respondent by certified mail, return receipt requested, on May 4, 2005, Respondent was
required to file any response to the Motion for Default within 15 days of service. 40 C.FR. §
22.16(b). As of the datc of this Order, Respondent has not filed a response o the Motion of
Default with the Regional 1Iearing Clerk. Respondent’s failure to respond to the Motion for
Default is deemed to be a waiver of any objection to the granling of the Motion for Default. 40
C.FR. § 22.16(b).

On Qetober 27, 20035, the Presiding Officer 1ssucd an Order Finding Respondent in
Defanlt and for Further Proceedings, In the Order, the Presiding Officer found the Respondent to

be in default for failure to file a timely answer, that Respondent’s delault constitutes, for




purposes of this proceeding, an admission of all facts alleged in the Complaint and a waiver of
Respondent’s right to contest such factual allegations. The Presiding Officer also ordered that
Complainant file its response o the Order, including a memorandum that scts forth the elements
of the violations alleged in the Complaint and demonsirates that the facts alleged in the
Complaint establish each element and its Molion for Assessment of a Penalty, including all
necessary supporting documentaiion, on or before November 30, 2005, The Order specifically
provided that Respondent would have 15 days after service of Complainant’s response to file its
response, if any, to Complainant’s filing,

On November 30, 2005, Complainant filed its Memorandun: i Support of Motion for
Default and Motion for Assessment of Penalty (“Memorandum and Motion™) -arguing that the
Complainant has established a prima facie casc of liabilily against Respondent and seeking a
default order against Respondent finding Respondent lable for the violations atleged in the
Complaint and seeking the assessment of a civil penalty of 311,000.00. As of the date of this
Order, Respondent has not filed a response to the Complainant’s Memorandum and Motion with
the Regional Hearing Clerk. Respondent’s failure to vespond to the Memorandum and Motion is
deemed to be a waiver of any objection-to the granting of the relicf requested in the
Memorandum and Motion. 40 C.F R § 22.16(b}.

FINDINGS OF FACT

Pursuant to seclions 22.17(c) and 22,.27(a) of the Consolidated Rules, 40 CF.R. §§
22.17(c) and 22.27(a), and based on the entire record in this case, [ make the following findings

of fact;




1. Respondent is a corporation organized under the laws of Oklahoma with a placc of
business located at 304 Flynn Road, Bransomn, Missouri 65610.

2. Respondcnt is the owner/operator, within the mearing of section 31 1{a){(6) of the
CWA, 33 U.5.C. § 1321(a)6), and 40 C.F.R. § 112.2, of an onshere oil production lacility
located in Section 17, Township 25, Range |7 in Nowata County, Oklahoma (“Facility™), which
is Jocated approximately 500 fect from a tributary to Lake Colagal.

3. The Facility has an aggregate above-ground storage capacity greater than 1320 gallons
of 01l in containers each with a shell capacity of at least 55 gallons.

4.  Lake Oolagah is a navigable water of the United Siates within the meaning of 40
C.F.R. § 112.2 and section 502(7) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7}.

5.  Respondent is engaged in drilling, producing, gathering, storing, processing, refining,
transferring, distributing, using or consurzing oil or il produets located at the Facilily,

6. The Facility is a non-transportation-related facility within the meaning of 40 CF.R. §
112.2, Appendix A as incorporated by reference within 40 CFR, § 112.2.

7. The Facility is an onshere facility within the meaning of section 311{&@}10) of the
CWA,33US.C § 1321fay10y, and 40 CF R, § 1122

8. The Facility is therefore a non-transportation-related onshore facility which, due to its
location, could reasonably be expected to discharge oil to a navigable watcr of the United States
or its adjoining shorelines in a harmful quantiiy (hereinafter referred to as an “SPCC-regulated
facility™).

9. Respondcnt’s predecessors began operating the Factlity prios to Angust 16, 2002,




10, Respondent began operating the Facility on an unknown date in March, 2004, and
has continued to operatc it since that dale.

11.  Pursuant to 40 C.FR. § 112.3, the owner or operator of an SPCC-regulated facility
must prepare a written SPCC plan in accordance with 40 CFR. § 112.7 and any other applicable
seclion of 40 C.F.R. Part 112.

12, Omn July 2, 2004, EPA inspceted the Faclity.

13. At the time of the EPA inspection, Respondent had failed to prepare an SPCC plan
for the Facility.

14, At the time of the EPA inspection, Respondent had fatled to maintain the secondary
conlainment as evidenced by croded walls and Respondent’s failure to remove accumuldated oil
from secondary containment promptly.

15. The Complaint was lited with the Regional Hearing Clerk on September 214, 2004,

16. A copy of the Complaint was niailed 1o Respondent by certified mail, relum receipt

requested, on March 17, 20035,

17. A retumn reccipt shows that Respondent received a copy of the Complaint on March
19, 20035,

18, Respondent did not [ile an answer 1o the Complaint within 30 days of receipl of (he
Complaint, and has not filed an answer as of the date of this Order.

19, On May 4, 2005, Complainant filed its Motion for Default and served it on the
Respondent.

20, ERespondent did not file an response to Complainant’s Motion for Defanlt within 5

days of scrvice and has not filed a response to the Motion for Default as of the date of this Order.




21, On October 27, 2005, the Presiding Officer issucd an Order Finding Respondent in
Defantt and for Furiher Proceedings which, among olher things, found Respondent in default for
failure to file a timely answer to the Compiaint, required Complainant to fife a memorandumn
setting forth the elements of the violations altcged in the Complaint and demonsirating that the
facts alleged in the Complaint establish each clement and a Motion for Assessment of Penalty on
or hefore Movember 30, 2005, The Order also specifically stated that Respondent would have 15
days afler service of Complainant’s response to the Order o file its response, if any.

22, On November 30, 20035, Complainant filed its Memorandum in Support of Motion
for Default and Motion for Assessment of Penally and served it on Respondent.

23. Respondent did not file a response to Complainant’s Memorandum in Support of
Motion for Default and Motion for Assessment of Penalty wiihin 15 days of service and has not
filed a response to the Memorandum is Support of Motion for Default and Motion for
Assessment of Penalty as of the date of this Order.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
Pursuant to 40 CF.R. §§ 22.17(c) and 22.27(a}, and bascd on the entire record, [ reach the
following conclusions of faw:

24. Respondent is a “person” as defined at sections 311(a)(7) and 502(5) of the CWA, 33

U.S.C. §§ 1321(a)(7) and 1362(5), and 40 C.F.R. § 112.2.

25. The regulation at 40 C.F.R. § 112.3 is a regulation issucd under section 311(}) of the

CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 13216).

26.  Respondent is subject to the requirement fo prepate an SPCC planin 40 C.F.R. §

112.3.




27.  Respondent violated 40 C.F.R. § 112.3 by failing to prepare an SPCC plan for the
Facility. |

28.  Pursuant to section 31 Hb}EWB)(1) of the CWaA, 33 US.C. § 1321(b)(6HBX1},
Respondent is liable for a civil penalty in an amount not to exceed 311,000 per day for each day
during which violation continues, up o a maximum of $32,500.

29.  The Complaint in this proceeding was law{ully and propeily served upon
Respondent in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.5(b}{1}.

30. Respondent’s failure to file an answer to the Complaint constitutes an admission of
all facts allcged in the Complaint and a waiver of Respondent’s righi to a hearing on such faclual
allegations. 40 CIF.R. § 22.17(a).

3l. Complainani’s Motion for Default was lawfully and properly served on Respondent.
40 C.FR, § 22.5(b)}2).

32. Respondent’s failurc to respond to ihe Motion for Default is deemed to be a waiver
of any objection to the granting of the Motion for Defanlt. 40 CF.R. § 22.16(b}.

33.  Complainant’s Memorandwn in Support ef Motion for Default and Motion for
Assessment of Penalty was lawfully and preperly served on Respondent. 40 C.F.R. § 22.5(b}{2).
34, Respondent’s failure to respond to the Memorandum in Suppott of Motion for

Default and Motion for Asscssment of Penally 1s deemed to be a waiver of any objection to the

pranting of the Molion for Default and the Motion for Assessment of Penalty. 40 C.F.R. §

22.16(b).




35, The civil penalty of $11,000.00 requested in the Memorandum in Support of Motion
for Default and Motion for Assessment of Penalty 15 not inconststent with scction 311(b} of the

CWA, 33 T1.S.C. § 1321(b), and the record in this proceeding.

DISCUSSION OF PENALTY

The relief requested in the Memorandum i Support of Motion for Default Motion for
Assessment of Penalty includes the assessment of 4 total civil penalty of 511,000.00 for the
alleged violation, With respect to penalty, the Congolidated Rules provide that the Presiding

Officer shall determine the amount of the civil penalty

.. . based on the evidence in the record and in accordance with any penalty criteria
set forth in the Act. The Presiding Officer shall consider any civil penalty
guidelines issued under the Act,

40 C.FR. § 22.27(b).

The staluiory factors [ am required to consider in delermining the amouni of the civil

penalty are

.. . the seriousness of the violation or violations, the economic benefit to the
violator, if any, resulting from the violation, the degree of culpability involved,
any other penalty for the same meident, any history of prior violatious, the nature,
exient, and degree of success of auny efforts of the violator to minimize or mingate
the effcets of the discharge, the economic impact of the penalty on the violator,
and any other matters as justice may require.

Section 31 L{b)(8) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1321(b)(8).

In considering this case in lighi of the statutory factors, I have considered the findings of
fact and conclusions of law above, the narrative summary explaining the reasoning behind the

penalty requested set forth in the Declaration of Bryant Smalley attached to Complainant’s




Memorandum in Support of Motion for Defailt and Motion for Assessment of Penalty {Exhibit
8), and the entire record in this case.

In his caleutation of the proposed penaity, Mr. Smalley, using the Civil Penalty Policy for
Section 311(b)(3) and Section 311(j) of the Clean Water Act {“Pcnalty Policy™) as guidancc,
considered the stalutory factors enumerated above. In assessing the seriousness of the violation,
Mr. Smalley considered that the storage capacity of the Facility is approximately 44,100 gallons
and that the Facility had no S8PCC plan and inadequate secondary containment. Mr. Smalley also
considered the potential environmental impact of a worst case discharge from the facility,
including that Lake Oolagah is a navigable water and serves as a wild fowl] refuge, but that it is
unknown if an actual or potential drinking water scurce is near the Facility. Finally, Mr. Smalley
considered the length of the violation, over two months prior to the inspection and over 19
months since the inspection, Alter considering all of this information, Mr, Smalley concluded
that a penalty of over $20,000.00 would be appropriate given the seriousness of the violation.

Mr. Smalley, using the BEN computer model and relymg on his experience in 8PCC
cases 1o help develop appropriate inputs, calculated that the economic benefit to the Respondent
resulting from the viclation resulting from the violation was less than $1,000.00.

Mr. Smalley considered Respondent’s degree of culpability did not warrant increasing ro
decreasing the penally.

There iz no evidence in the record that Respondent has paid any other penally lo EPA or
other government agencies [or the violation wnvolved in this case, and Mr. Smalley made no

adjustment in his penalty calculation for this factor.




There is no evidence in the record that the Respondent has a lustory of prior viotalions of
the SPCC regulaiions, and Mr. Smalley made no adjustinent in his penally calculation for this
factor.

There is no evidence in the record that Respondent took any steps lo minimize or mitigale
the cffcets of the violation or of any potential discharge {rom the Fagility or that Respondent has
taken aclions necessary 10 come into compliance with the SPCC regulations, and Mr. Smalley
made no adjustment in his penalty calculation for this factor.

There 13 no evidence in the record thal the economic impact of the proposcd penally will
render Respondent unable to continue in business, and Mr. Smalley made no adjustments in his
penalty calculation for this factor.

Mr. Smalley made no adjustments in his penaity caiculation for any other matiers as
justice may require, Tconsidered Respondent’s general recalcitrance in its dealiﬁgs with EPA in
this matter as a factor that could support an increage in the penally in this case.

Pursuant to 40 CF.R. § 22.17{c), “[i]he relief proposed i the complaint or the motion for
delault shall be ordered unless the requested relief is clearly inconsistent with the record of the
proceeding or the Act.”™ The Complainant proposes to assess a total eivil penally of $11,000.00
for the violalion alleged in the Complaint. After considering the statulory factors, and the eniire

record in this case, I {find the eivil penalty proposed 15 consistent with the record of this

proceeding and the CWA,
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DEFAULT ORDER
Respondent tg hercby ORDERED as follows:
(1) Respondent is assessed a civil penally in the amount of $11,000.00.
{a) Payment of the fll amount of the civil penalty assessed shall be made
within thirty (30) days alter this default order becomes final under 44
C.F.R. § 22.27(c) by submitting a certified check or cashier’s check
payable 10 “Ont Spill Liability Trust [Fand,” and mailed to:
OPA Enforcement Coordinator (6SF-RC}
EPA Region 6
1445 Ross Avenue
Dallas, Texas 73202-2733
A transmittal letter identifying the subject case and the EPA docket
number, plus Respondent’s name and address, shall accompany the check.
{by  Respondent shall mail a copy of the check to:
Lorcna S. Vaughn
Regional Hearing Clerk (6RC)
U.5. Envirenmental Protection Agency
Region 6

1445 Ross Avenue
Dallas, TX 75202-2733

and to:

Ed Quinones
Schior Assistant Regional Counsel (6RC-S)

U.5. EPA Region 6
1445 Ross Avennc
Dallas, Texas 75202-2733
(2) Thiz Default Order constitutes an Tnitial Decision, as provided in 40 C.F.R. §

22.17(c). This Initial Decision shall become a final order unless (1) an appeal to

11




the Environmeital Appeals Beard is taken from it by any party to the procceding
within thirty (30 days from the date of service provided in the cerlificate of
service accompantying this order, {2) a party moves to set aside the Defanlt Order,
or (3) the Environmental Appeals Board elects, sua sponte, to review the Inilial

Decision within forty-five (45) days after its service upon the parties.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

Dated this {-f{‘ day of February 2006.

Mick! LR

MICHAEL C. BARRA
REGIONAL JUDICIAL OFFICER
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CERTIFICATE OF EBERVICE

I, Lorena 8. Vaughn, the Regional Hearing Clerk, do hereby
certify that a kErue and correct copy of the Initial Descision and
Default Order for Class I - CWA 06-2005-4807 was provided to the
following on the date and in the manner stated below:

Eurika Durr CERTIFIED MAIL
U.5. Environmental Protaction Agency

Clerk of th e Board

Environmental Appeals Board (MC1103B)

Ariel Rins Building

1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20460-0001

Mark Cock

New Lift, Inc.
304 Flynn Road
Branson, MO 65614

Edwin M. Quinones INTEROFFICE MALL
U.S. Envirommental Protection Agency

1445 Rossg Avenus
Dallas, Texas 75202

Lorena 5. Vaughn
Eegicnal Hearing Clerk




